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Mr. BruceBerwager
Chief OperationsOfficer
V enoco, Inc .

5464CarpinteriaAvenue,SuiteJ
Carpinteria,CA 93013-1423
Re: CPFNo. 5-2002-<XX>8
DearMr. Berwager:
Enclosed is the Final Order issuedby the Associate Administrator for Pipeline Safety in the
abovc--refercncedcase.It makesfindingsof violation andassesses
a civil penaltyof $46,500.The
Final Order also requires certain coilQ,-tlve actions and the amendment of your procedures for
operations, maintenance, and emergencies. The penalty payment terms are set forth in the Final
Order. Yourrcceipt of the Final Order constitutesservice oftbat document under 49 C.F.R. § 190.5.

Sincerely,

IiiJJ

Enclosure
cc:

Mr. Keith Wenal
SafetyandTraininglOOf Coorrl~~~t)f

CERTIFIFDMAll.. -RETI JRN RECEIPTREQUESTED
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In the Matter of
Venoco, Inc.
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OFFICEOF PIPELINESAFETY
WASHINGTON,DC 20S90
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CPFNo. S-2002.(XX)8

Respondent.

FINAL ORDER
On September25-26, 2001, pursuant to 49U.S.C. § 60117, arepresentativeoftbe Western Region,
Office oCPipelineSafety (OPS) conductedan on-site pipeline safety inspection ofRespondent'sRyer
SalesGasPipeline ("Ryer Pipeline.') facilities aDdrecords in Concord. California. As a result of the
inspectio~ the Director. Western Region. OPS. issued to Respondent, by letter dated August 19.
2002. a Notice of Probable Violation, PI'OposedCivil Penalty, Proposed Compliance Order. and
Notice of Amendment (Notice). In accordancewith 49 C.F.R. § 190.207. the Notice: (I) proposed
finding that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. §§ 192.491, 192.616, 192.705. 192.706. 192.465,
192.467, and committed two violations of § 192.605; (2) proposed assessinga civil penalty of
$46.500 for six of the alleged violations; and (3) proposed that Respondent take certain measures
to correct the alleged violatioDS. The Notice also proposed,in accordancewith 49 C.F .R. § 190.237.
that Respondentamend its procedures for operations, maintenanceand emergencies.
Respondentrespondedto the Notice by letter dated September 18,2002 (Response). Respondent
did not contest the allegations of violation but offered information concerning the ~tive
measuresit intended to initiate. Respondentdid not ~uest a hearing. consequently Respondent
waived its right to one.

FINDINGS OF VIOLATION
In its Response, Respondent did not contest the alleged violations set forth in the Notice.
Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated the following sections of 49 C.F.R. Part 192, as more
fully described in the Notice:
49 C.F.R. § 192.605 -- failing to adequately prepare and follow a manual of written
procedures for conducting operations, maintenance, and emergency responseactivities in
accordancewith the requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 192;
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49 C.F.R § 192.491 -- failing to maintain records demonstrating the adequacyof com>sion
control measuresduring the 1998-2001period;
49 C.F.R. § 192.705 -- failing to conduct patrols of the pipeline right-of-way within the
prescribed maximum intervals during the 1998-99 period;
49 C.F.R. § 192.706 - failing to adequatelyconduct leakage surveys within the prescribed
maximum interval during the 1998-99 period;
49 C.F.R. § 192.46S(a) - failing to adequately conduct pipe-to-soil testing to monitor
cathodic protection levels within the prescribed maximum intervals during the 1998-2001
period;
49 C.F.R. § 192.46S(b)-- failing to adequatelyinspect the Rycr Station cathodic protection

rectifierwithintheprescribed
maximumintervalduring the 1998-2001period;
49 C.F.R. § 192.467(d) - failing to properly conduct electrical testing to ensurethe adequacy

of electricalisolationat railroadcasings.
These findings of violation will be consideredprior offenses in any subsequentenforcement action
taken against Respondent.
ASSESSMENT OF PENAL TV

Under 49 U.S.C. § 60122,Respondentis subject to a civil penaltynot to exceed$100.000per
violation for eachday of dlc violation up to a maximumof $1.000,000for any relatedseriesof
violations.
49 U.S.C. § 60122 and 49 C.F.R. § 190.225 require that, in determining the amount of the civil
penalty, I consider the following criteria: nature, circumstances,and gravity of the violation, degree
of Respondent'sculpability, history of Respondent'sprior offenses, Respondent'sability to pay the
penalty, good faith by Respondentin attempting to achieve compliance, the effect on Respondent's
ability to continue in business, and such other matters asjustice may require.
Venoco, Inc. is responsible for operating and maintaining the Ryer Pipeline in accordancewith the
applicable pipeline safety regulations. Theseregulations representthe minimum measuresthat must
be taken by pipeline operators to protect the public safety. In this case the violations involved,
among other things, inadequatecorrosion control measuresand the failure to conduct periodic leak
testing. These are among the most fundamental requirementsof the gaspipeline safety regulations.
In its response, Respondent acknowledged the deficiencies identified in the OPS inspection,
including the fact that this pipeline was operatedwithout cathodic protection for a significant period
of time. Although a new impressedCUlTentcathodic protection system was eventually installed on
the Ryer Pipeline, the failure to protect againstcorrosion during the 1998 to 2001 period could have
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resulted in deterioration of the pipe wall and a COITCSponding
increase in the potential for pipeline
failures, putting the public safety at risk. Moreover, vital monitoring and inspections that were
required on a semi-annual or almual basis were not missed by a matter of days or weeks, but rather,
there were no records of their being conducted for a period of nearly three years. In addition, careful
monitoring of the level of corrosion control is of particular importance on the Ryer Pipeline which
is constnlcted of both 8-inch and 12-inch sections, potentially making periodic intemaJ pipe wall
inspections problematic.
The Notice proposed civil penalties for the violations as follows:

Item2:
Item9:
Item10:
I!em11:

failureto maintaincorrosioncontrolrecords
2 missedpatrollingx $2,500
1 missedleakage
survey
failureto follow cathodicprotectionpocedU1'8

Item12:
Itcm13:

1missed
rectifier
survey
1missed
electrical
survey

-

S18,(XX)

-

$ 5,000
$ 2,500
S15,(XX)

=

1*1 -

S 3.(xx)
S 3.(xx)_~
~,500

.'

Respondenthasnot presentedinfonnation that warrantsmitigation of the civil penalty amounts
proposedfor any of the violations committed. Accordingly, having reviewed the record and
consideredthe assessment
criteria, I assessRespondenta total civil penaltyof $46,500for failing
to complywith therequirementsof49C.F.R §§ 192.491,192.
70S,192.706,192.465,
and 192.467.
Paymentof the civil penalty must be made within 20 days of service. Federal regulations
(49 C.F.R. § 89.21(b)(3» require this paymentbe madeby wire transfer, through the FederalReserve
Communications System (Fedwire), to the acCOWltof the U.S. Treasury. Detailed instructions are
contained in the enclosure. Questions concerning wire transfen: should be directed to: Financial
Operations Division (AMZ-120), Federal Aviation Administration, Mike Monroney Aeronautical
Center, P.O. Box 25770, Oklahoma City, OK 73125; (405) 954-4719.
Failure to pay the $46,500 civil penalty will result in accnIa1of interest at the current annual rate in

accordancewith 31 U.S.C. § 3717,31 C.F.R. § 901.9 and 49 C.F.R. § 89.23. Pursuantto those same
authoritiest a late penalty charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be charged if payment is not
madewithin 110 days of service. Furdlcrmoret failure to pay the civil penalty may result in refenal
of the matter to the Attorney Ga1era1for appropriate action in a United StatesDistrict Court.

COMPLIANCEORDER
The Notice proposeda Compliance Order with respectto the violationsof -49C.F.I..

If

192.605and

192.491.
Vnder49 V.S.C. § 6O118(a),each person who engagesin the transportation ofgas or who owns or
operatesa pipeline facility is required to comply with the applicable safety standardsestablished
under Chapter 601. Pursuant to the authority of 49 V.S.C. § 6O118(b) and 49 C.F.R. § 190.217,
Respondentis ordered to take the following actions with respect to its Ryer Sales Gas Pipeline to
ensurecompliance with the pipeline safety regulations applicable to its operations:
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1. Establishand follow a comprehensivemanual of writtenproced uresfor operations, maintenance,
and emergenciesdevelopedspecifically for the Ryer Sales Gas Pipeline that meets all
requirementsof 49 C.F.R.Part 192,includingSubpartsE, ~ L, andM asmore fully described
in the Notice.

2.

Verify the integrity of the pipeline by conducting a pressuretest in KCOroancewith 49 C.F.R.
Part 192, Subpart J. Submit the pressure test results to the Director, Western Region, OPS
within 7 days of receiving them. Include infonnation on the nature and location of any leak
incidents should they occur.

3. Evaluatethe adequacyof the corrosion control measuresby conducting a close-interval cathodic
protection survey of the pipeline, aswell as interferencecurrent testing at all crossings and other

areaswherefault currentsmaybe present,in accordance
with 49 C.F.R. §§ 192.463,192.473,
and Appendix D. Submit the results of the electrical surveys to the Director, Western Region,
OPS within 7 days of receiving them. Include infonnation on the nature and location of any
deficiencies identified during the electrical surveys and a summary evaluation oftbe adequacy
of the corrosion control measures.
4. If any failures or deficiencies are identified as a result of the testing and evaluation actions
required by this Order, or are otherwise known or suspectedby Respondent,provide for further
evaluations, appropriaterepairs, or other remedial actions to bring the pipeline and its associated
facilities into compliance with the pipeline safety regulations and relevant industry standards.
Prior to initiating any repairs, develop and submit a plan to the Director, with a schedule.
including a description of the assessmentcriteria that will be used in the prioritization of any
deficiencies that are identified, and a description of the repair criteria and methods that will be
used in undertaking any con'ective measures.

S. Developandmaintaina fonnal corrosioncontrol recordkeepingsystemin KCOrdance
with
49 C.F.R. § 192.491that includes,amongother things, maps showing dle location of the
pipeline's cathodicprotectionfacilities andanyneighboringstructuresbondedto the pipeline
or its cathodicprotectionsystems,and recordsdemonstratingthe adequacyof the corrosion
control measuresrequiredfor the pipeline under49 C.F.R. Part 192, SubpartI. The record
keeping systemmust also ensurethat any recordscreatedby maintenancecontractorsare
regularlyreviewedby Respondentto ensurethat the pipeline is being operatedin compliance
with the pipeline safetyregulationsapplicableto its operations.

6. Respondentmust accomplishthe aboveitems within 60 days following receiptof this Final

Order. Submit all test results, evaluations,action plans, schedules,procedures,and other
documentsdemonstratingcompliancewith this Orderto the Director, WesternRegion,Office
of PipelineSafety,GoldenHills Centre,SuiteA-25O,12600WestColfax Avenue,Lakewood,
CO 80215-3736.

,
AMENDMENT OF PROCEDURES
Items 3-6 of the Notice alleged inadequacies in Respondent's procedmes for operations,
maintenance,and emergenciesand proposed to require amendment of Respondent'sproced\D'e8to
comply with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 192. Respondent did not contest the proposed
Notice of Amendment. Accordingly, I find that Respondent'sproceduresas described in the Notice
are inadequateto ensuresafeoperation of its pipeline system. Pursuant to 49 V.S.C. § 60108(8) and
49 C.F.R. § 190.237, Respondent is ordered to make the following amendmentsto its procedures:
1. In accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 191.1S(b), amend the procedures to include directions for
operatorper8OIUlelto make 8 supplementalincident report where additional related infonnation
is obtained after an incident report is originally submitted.

2. In accordancewith 49 C.F.R. § 192.60S(c),amendthe proceduresto include instructionsfor
personnelto follow in the eventofpersonnclCITOr,
operationof any safetydevice,component
malfunctions,or otherinstancesof abnormaloperation.
3. In accordancewith 49 C.F.R. § 192.615,amendthe proceduresto include instructionsfor
pmonnel to follow to promptly andeffectivelyrespondto a fire, naturaldisaster,or othergas
pIpelineemergmcy.
4. In accordancewith 49 C.F.R. § 192.629,amendthe proceduresto include instructionsfor
personnelto safelyandreliably performpurgingof the pipeline, including measuresto ensure
that lines containingair areproperlypurged.
s. Within 30 days following receipt of this Order, submit the amendedproceduresto the Director,
Western Region, OPS.

WARNlNGrrEMS
The Notice did not propose a civil penalty or cOITectiveaction for Items 7 and 8 in the Notice~
therefore, these are considered warning items. Respondent is warned that if it does not take
appropriateaction to correct theseitems, enforcementaction will be taken if asubsequentinspection
reveals a violation. The warnings were for:
49 C.F.R. § 192.605(a) -- failing to conduct an annual review of dIe manual of written
procedures for operations, maintenance,and emergenciesduring the 1999 period; and
49 C.F.R. § 192.616 -- failing to adequately establish a comprehensive public education
program increasing awarenessof the presenceof the pipeline for potential excavators and
enabling the public to recognize a gas pipeline emergency for the purpose of reporting it to
the operator or appropriate public authorities.

~
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The Director. Western Region, OPS may grant an extension of time for compliance with any of the
tenns of this Order for good cause. A request for an extension must be in writing.
Under 49 C.F.R. § 190.215, Respondent has a right to petition for reconsideration of this Final
Order. The petition must be received within 20 days of Respondent'sreceipt of this Final Order and
must contain a brief statement of the issue(s). The filing of the petition automatically stays the
payment of any civil penalty assessed. All other tenDS of the Order, including any required
corrective actions, remain in full effect unless the Associate Administrator, upon written request.
grants a stay.
Failure to comply with this Final Order may result in the assessmentof civil penalties of up to
$100,000per violation per day, or in the referral of the casefor judicial enforcement The tenDSand
conditions of this Final Order are effective on receipt.

OCT30m
AssocIate
rJ..I Y\.
for Administrator

PipelineSafety

